BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

OF THE STATE OF MISSOURI

In the matter of the application of Laclede Gas         )

Company for a temporary variance from certain
) 


portions of Rule 10.A of its Tariff regarding
meter
)
GE-2005-0405

testing in connection with its implementation of 
)

an automated meter reading program


)

LACLEDE GAS COMPANY’S  RESPONSE TO LOCAL 5-6’s REPLY

CONCERNING APPLICATION TO INTERVENE

COMES NOW Laclede Gas Company (“Laclede” or “Company”) and, for its Response to the Reply filed by Paper, Allied-Industrial, Chemical and Energy Workers Local No. 5-6, AFL-CIO (“Local 5-6”) concerning Local 5-6’s Application to Intervene, states as follows:


1.
On May 10, 2005, Laclede filed an application requesting that the Commission grant it a temporary variance, through calendar year 2006, from the statistical sampling requirements of Laclede’s meter testing program.  During the variance period, Laclede would concentrate on replacing specific meters that have been identified as incompatible with Laclede’s automated meter reading (“AMR”) program, rather than on sampling random meters for accuracy. On June 15, 2005, the Staff of the Missouri Public Service Commission (“Staff”) filed its Recommendation and Memorandum in which it recommended that the Commission approve Laclede’s Application for a Variance.

2. On June 20, 2005, Local 5-6 filed its Verified Application to Intervene in this proceeding in which it took no position on Laclede’s Application but expressed concern about the impact that the Company’s request for relief could have on jobs and other terms and conditions of employment.  On June 30, 2005, Laclede filed a response opposing Local 5-6’s application on the grounds that the potential impact of the variance on jobs and the conditions of employment is not an appropriate basis for intervention and delay of the variance requested in this case, and, in any event, that the temporary nature of the relief requested should minimize the practical impact on the applicant.  

3. On July 15, 2005, Local 5-6 filed a Reply raising two previously unstated concerns to support its application to intervene.  First, Local 5-6 states that, anecdotally, trace devices on Laclede meters may not meet meter sampling requirements and may need to be replaced.  Second, Local 5-6 is concerned that there is no assurance that Laclede will resume the current meter sampling program when the temporary variance expires in 2007.

4. Laclede responds to Local 5-6’s Reply by stating first that trace devices are not meters, but are remote sending units that are not part of, or affected by, the statistical meter sampling program.  Regardless, there is no reason to even explore this matter, because Laclede’s AMR program will result in the installation of new remote reading units that will replace all trace devices in Laclede’s system in less than two years!   Therefore, this issue provides no basis for Local 5-6’s intervention. 

4.
Second, regarding whether the Company will resume the meter sampling program in 2007, Laclede has represented in its pleadings that the variance requested is temporary and will apply only through 2006. If the temporary variance is granted, Laclede will be required to comply with its stated tariffs regarding meter sampling upon expiration of the variance.  If this issue is about employment for Local 5-6’s members, it is not new, and has already been addressed by the Company.  If this issue is about obeying the law, neither Local 5-6 nor the Commission has any reason to believe that the Company will not assume its meter sampling obligations upon expiration of the temporary variance.  As a consequence, this point also fails to provide a basis to support Local 5-6’s intervention in this case. 

WHEREFORE, Laclede repeats its assertion that Local 5-6 has failed to provide any valid basis for its request to intervene in this case, and respectfully requests that the Commission deny the Application to Intervene filed in this proceeding by the Paper, Allied-Industrial, Chemical and Energy Workers Local No. 5-6, AFL-CIO.

Respectfully Submitted,

/s/ Michael C. Pendergast______________
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE


The undersigned certifies that a true and correct copy of the foregoing Response was served on the General Counsel of the Staff of the Missouri Public Service Commission, the Office of Public Counsel and the Paper, Allied-Industrial, Chemical and Energy Workers Local No. 5-6, AFL-CIO on this 25th day of July, 2005 by hand-delivery, email, fax or by placing a copy of such Response, postage prepaid, in the United States mail.
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